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Frequently Asked Questions Relating 

to Request for Proposal (RFP): 

Immigration Legal Services and 

Capacity Building  

 

 

 

 

The following questions were collected from interested parties through the Oregon State Bar’s SB 1543 

RFP Information Session on Monday, January 23rd, and by direct email inquiry. The questions have been 

reformatted and collated here in relation to the portion of the RFP to which they correspond. Answers 

reflect the present-day planning and intentions of the OSB and are subject to change prior to the 

initiation of the Immigration Legal Services and Capacity Building program.   

1. § 5.2 DIRECT IMMIGRATION LEGAL SERVICES  

 

a. Q: Subsection (5) of 5.2.1.1 states that “Continued representation of an individual in 

affirmative immigration petitions or applications if removal proceedings have been 

terminated prior to adjudication” falls under “Removal Defense.” Does this include cases 

that have been dismissed after we requested prosecutorial discretion (including cases we 

are currently working on after termination)?  

i. A: Yes, where a matter has been removed from the court’s docket after a 

provider has accepted it for representation and affirmative relief is available 

to the client, a provider is expected to continue representation through 

adjudication of the affirmative benefit.   

b. Q: If a client is eligible for relief before EOIR and USCIS, would those cases be counted as 

separate cases for purposes of the removal defense vs. affirmative case count? 

i. A: No, for our purposes, a removal defense case encompasses representation 

across all necessary forums (e.g., USCIS, state courts) for the resolution of the 

client’s immigration matters. 

c. Q: For organizations signing on to the Early and Continuous Pilot program, how does that fit 

in to the rest of the work in terms of the workload?  

i. A: Cases accepted as part of the Early and Continuous Pilot Program will be 

considered as part of a provider’s total 35 active case workload.   
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d. Q: Is there any possibility of being more specialized in receiving case assignments, so to get 

certain kinds of removal cases that are more complex and are potentially weighted as more 

than one case.  For example, someone with an extensive criminal record, or doing appeals. 

i. A: At present we do not contemplate a specialized track for case referrals or 

affording more than one case weight for each matter accepted. Should a 

provider possess specific legal or other competencies that they believe would 

be of value to the program and its participants, we welcome the inclusion of 

such details in the submitted proposals. Once the cohort of providers has been 

selected and all competencies known, OSB will be better positioned to 

coordinate with the ECO Clearinghouse regarding the referral of specific 

matters to specialized providers.    

e. Q: For Direct Legal Services, the FTE funds allow for support staff and administrative costs. Is 

there any funding limit (or funding range) for each FTE requested? 

i. A: We have not set a specific limit to encourage applicants to budget for their 

actual program costs and the current market for low-income legal services.    

f. Q: Are there ways for the program to account for potentially having one FTE having more 

than 35 cases.  For example, one FTE has 35 cases, but a UAC asylum interview and a BIA 

briefing schedule just came in at the same time and they have a short turnaround.  Suddenly 

one FTE would have 37 cases right? 

i. A: There is certainly the potential for one FTE to fluctuate from the 35 case 

workload mark. While the OSB will work with the providers to better 

understand their workloads and assist them in appropriately budgeting their 

resources, it will be incumbent upon each provider to balance their workload 

as they deem fit. As to this precise example, as noted above a removal defense 

case encompasses representation across all necessary forums (e.g., USCIS, 

state courts) for the resolution of the client’s immigration matters. Therefore, 

where a client is being represented in a UAC asylum interview and a BIA 

briefing, such representation would constitute one active case.   

g. Q: When we have removal cases that are terminated prior to adjudication, can we 

immediately count those towards our affirmative count or do they need to be re-referred 

and distributed through the clearinghouse? 

i. A: Representation in an affirmative matter that was previously on the 

immigration court’s docket will continue to be categorized as an active 

removal defense case. This is in recognition of the precarious legal state that 

many such cases fall into; although they are no longer docketed for removal, 

failure to pursue affirmative relief could expose a client to adverse legal 

consequences.   

h. Q: Are the affirmative cases also merits blind (like the removal cases)? Wondering if there is 

a case referred that has a risky affirmative remedy that might put them in proceedings, if an 

office can reject this type of case?  

i. A: The expectation is that all matters referred and received by a provider are 

accepted with a merits-agnostic approach to service delivery. In the 

affirmative context, a client must be prima facie eligible for the relief they are 

being referred for – the latter a determination made in the first instance by 
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the ECO Clearinghouse. A provider is expected to conduct their own 

independent assessment of the client’s eligibility. Should that assessment 

differ from the initial eligibility assessment, a mechanism will be available to 

confer with the ECO Clearinghouse and determine appropriate next steps for 

the referral.  

i. Q: How will the complexity of a case be weighed? 

i. A: Additional guidelines will be provided including, for example, around the 

definition of active versus inactive cases, which will impact the weight a 

matter is afforded. However, we offer the following case weight information in 

preview of that guidance. 

Type 1 Case Types 

Valuation = .5 case credit1 
 

Citizenship - Naturalization (N-400) 

Citizenship Application via Passport (DS-11) 

Citizenship Derivation/Acquisition (N-600) 

Replace Certificate of Citizenship (N-565) 

Employment Authorization Document (I-765)2 

Petition for Alien Relative (I-130) Non-marriage based 

Asylee/Refugee Derivative (I-730) 

Fiancé Visa (I-129F) 

Relief for Surviving Relative or Humanitarian Reinstatement 

Removal of Conditions (I-751) 

Adjustment of Status (other than spouse-based) (I-485) 

Temporary Protected Status (I-821) 

DACA – initial/renewal application (I-821D) 

Adjustment of Status (I-485) 

Application to Replace Permanent Resident Card (I-90) 

Reentry Permit (I-131) 

Application for Travel Document (I-131) 

Consular Processing (DS 160/DS 260) 

Change/Extension of Visa (I-539) 

Replacement/Initial Nonimmigrant Arrival-Departure Document (I-
102) 

Application for Action on an Approved Application or Petition (I-824) 

Humanitarian Parole 

                                                           
1 A means will be available to request that a particular matter be afforded additional case credit due to aggravating 
or complicating factors requiring significant investment of additional time and resources.  
2 Where employment authorization documents are being sought in relation to a form of relief (e.g., pending 
asylum or adjustment of status, DACA, TPS, etc.) that a provider is already receiving case credit for, additional 
credit will not be afforded.  
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Parole in Place 

 

Type 2 Case Types 

Valuation = 1 case credit 
 

Representation in removal proceedings3 

VAWA Self-Petition (I-360/I-751) 

SIJS (I-360) and seeking of relevant state court predicate order 

Affirmative Asylum/Convention Against Torture/Withholding of 
Removal (I-589) 

CAM Refugee/Parole 

One-step Petition For Spouse (I-130) and Adjustment of Status (I-
485)  

T-Visa (I-914) 

U-Visa (I-918) 

NACARA 

Adjustment of Status or Immigrant Visa Requiring Waiver of 
Inadmissibility (I-192/I-601) 

Adjustment of Status Requiring Declaration of Self Sufficiency (I-485 
and I-944) 

Advance Permission to Enter as a Nonimmigrant (I-192) 

Appeal - Board of Immigration Appeals (EOIR-26, EOIR-27) 

Stay of removal (I-246) 

Motion to Reopen or Reconsider (EOIR) 

 

2. § 5.2 IMMIGRATION CLINICS AND HELPDESKS 

  

a. Q: The RFP says Clinics would serve only people referred through the Clearinghouse. Would 

the Helpdesk be able to serve people who were not referred through the Clearinghouse? If 

that is the case, what are the eligibility criteria for people served through the Helpdesk? 

i. A: Both the Helpdesks and Clinics will work in coordination with the 

Clearinghouse, including as a source of referrals. Depending on staffing and 

capacity, Clinic or Helpdesk staff may choose to also serve as navigation 

points; however, in either scenario the Clearinghouse will serve as a partner in 

channeling appointments to both site types. Eligibility criteria for all program 

participants will be the same – income below 200% of the FPG and Oregon 

State residence.  

b. Q: Would the Clinic and Helpdesk staff be able to serve as the attorney of record for the 

types of affirmative services listed in the bullet points 5.3.1?  

                                                           
3 One case credit for representation in removal proceedings is exclusive and shall entail representation in all 
necessary forms of relief across all venues without additional credit. Otherwise stated, representation in removal 
proceedings may not be combined with any other category of relief listed herein for additional case credit.   
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i. A: The level of service that Clinic and Helpdesk staff provide to their clients (as 

well as the precise menu of services to be provided) will be negotiated 

between OSB and the confirmed awardees. We encourage RFP applicants to 

consider detailing the relative advantages they foresee in providing pro se 

versus full representation on the matters they provide assistance on and how 

they approach scope of representation in their current daily practices.    

c. Q: Would the Clinic and Helpdesk staff be able to help with limited defensive issues, like 

motion to request a remote hearing (especially beneficial to people outside the Portland 

area) or even helping with pro se I-589s?  

i. A: The menu of services to be provided by Clinic and Helpdesk staff will be 

negotiated between OSB and the confirmed awardees. We encourage RFP 

applicants to consider detailing the services they see as most beneficial to the 

needs of the communities they serve and how they are equipped to meet 

those needs.  

d. Q: Regarding the FTE for the Clinics and Helpdesks: would the total hours of service each 

week include the service hours of both the attorney/accredited rep and the support staff?  

i. A: The total hours or weekly service are the timeframes that we expect the 

Clinics and Helpdesks to be open. How an organization chooses to staff that 

time will be theirs to decide. However, our proposed FTE rate cannot be scaled 

to the number of staff.     

e. Q: Could you please share examples of what types of activities would count as service 

hours? 

i. A: Activities that Clinic and Helpdesk staff might engage in are client 

consultations; form/motion preparation and filing; and client-related record 

keeping. Please see the text of the RFP for additional examples.   

 

3. § 10 Proposal Narrative and Budget 

 

a. Q: Does OSB have an Indirect Cost Rate they recommend applicants to use, or Negotiated 

Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) is accepted?  

i. A: We do not have a prescribed Indirect Cost Rate. The budget worksheet 

should be used to depict your actual and anticipated indirect costs. Generally 

speaking, we view an indirect cost rate of approximately 10% or less as 

reasonable under most circumstances.  

b. Q: How should indirect costs be calculated? In the budget template, the indirect cost cell 

wasn't pre-populated with a formula.  

i. A: We encourage applicants to use whatever indirect cost calculations they 

employ as a matter of course to ensure effective program service delivery and 

compliance with relevant tax laws.  

c. Q: If an organization plans to apply for two service lines, should two separate budgets be 

submitted? 

i. A: The template budget spreadsheet contains two tabs – one for program 

component 5.2 (Direct Immigration Legal Services) and another for component 
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5.3 (Clinics and Helpdesks). An organization applying for both components 

should complete the relevant elements of both tabs. Within each tab, an 

organization can include multiple FTE lines should they so desire.  

d. Q: Are there any guidelines on what number of support staff or percentage of supervisor 

staff is appropriate/will be considered for per FTE?   

i. A: We have not offered guidelines on the amount of an FTE that should be 

dedicated to support and supervisor staff because we recognize that every 

organization maintains a distinct approach to service delivery and a variety of 

factors will dictate how resources are distributed across program staff.   

e. Q: Is there a page limit for the narrative document?  

i. A: There is not a prescribed page limit for the narrative application document. 

f. Q: Will partial awards be funded? 

i. A: Potentially. Depending on the substance of the proposals we receive, 

partial awarded may be funded.  


